CIN :U45206HRZGDOPTCO39059

SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance 5heet as at March 31, 2021

As at As at
Particulars Motes March 34, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rupees Rupees
ASEETS
A, Man-curreni Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 38,590,207 49,959,064
intangible assets 4
{I} untler SCA 15,13,04,66,503 23,35,70,68,673
{ii} others 4,711,120 6,098,002
Right to Use Assets s 54.52,487 B82,17,573
Other non-current assets G 53,580,196 | 53,859,154
Toatal Non-curirent Assets 15,14,56,19,514 23,37,62,83,509
g Current Assets
Financial assots
{ifTrade receivahles 7 7,87,20,067 22,48,81,112
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 8 14,29,87,1563 17,34,B6,754
{if) Bank bafances other than {ii) above a - 5£7,21,71,853
{iv] ther financial assets 10 207,235,912 2,53,01,422
Current tax assets (Nel| il 18,78,505 3,48,30,539
Othar curront assots 12 19,61,96,154 1,24,32,508
Total Current Assals 44,G5,17,801 1,04,32,54,189
Total Assets {AtR) 15,58,61,27 315 24.41,95,37 688
EQUITY AKO LIABILITIES
A. Share Capital
Equity share capital 13 BEB,57,30,000 88,57,30,000
Other Equity 14 t5,43,78,18,063) {1,26,35,74,787)
Total Share Capital & Reserves {5,55,20,88,063) [27,73,44,787)
B. UABILITIES
B1. Mon-current Lizbilities
Financial Liabilitics
(i) Nan-current borrowings 15 15,72,22,00,008 13,47,43,02,718
{ii) Lease Lisbllites 16 41,87 007 61,54,571
Provisions 17 1,00,04,00,273 5§, 23,30,725%
Total Mon-cuirent Liakilities 16,7%,67,56,288 14,00,27,28,016
B2.Current liabilities
Flnancial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 18 2,15,50,00,000 2A5,50,00,000
{ii} Lease Liabilities 16 19,18,553 24 50,852
(i) Trade Payables 19 :
{a} Total Qutstanding due of Micre Enterprise and Small Enterpriscs - -
{b] Total Cutstanding due of other than Micra Enterprise and Small 5,65,05,717 11,08,04,976
[iv) Other financial Habilities 20 1,128,44,97,255 ¥,75,63,72,053
{Provisions 71 11,27,825 40,67,82,522
Other curent liabilities 22 23,793,741 30,583,165
Total Current tiabilities 4,40,14,29,690 10,73,45,94,46%
Tolal Liabilities 21,13,82,25,378 24,79,73,82,485
Total Equity and Lizhilities (A+R) 15,58,61,27,315 24,41,95,37,698
Summary of significant accounting policies 182

The accompanying notes are an integral park of the financial statements.
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SURAT HAZIRA NKH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN :U45206HR2009PTCO33059

Statement of Profit and Loss for the peried ended 3ist March 2021

Particulars Notes

For the year ended Far the year ended

niarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2024

income Rupees Rupees
Revenue from aperations 23 1,69,95,81,383 1,62,15,39,463
O & i support Grant 24 - 45,42,80,000
Other income 25 1,25,14,519 1,90,19,359
Construction income pri - 4,06,15,189
Total Income 1,71.21,95,902 2,13,54,54,011
Expenses
Construction cost 27 - 4.06,15,189
Operating expenses 28 32,46,20,051 19,83,74,443
Employee benefiis expenses 29 9,26,01,039 9,97,85,7/58
Finance rosts 30 2,28,73,00,345 2,27,11,36,023
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2 1,17,79,14,455 89,74,24,340
Impairment of Right under service concession arrangerments ) 7.,05,28,26,01G -
Other expenses 32 41,85,483 67,35,064
Proavision far Major Maintenance of Roads 33 - 1,98,64,130
Total expenses 10,93,54,48,031 3,53,392,34,948
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (9,22,72,52,228) {1,39,84,80,937)
Add: Exceptional iterms 34 4,05,40,74,742 -
Profit/{loss) before tax {5,17,31,77,385) (1.39,84,80,937)
Profitf (loss) for the period (5,17,31,77,386) {1,39,84,80,857)
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of the defined henefit plans(net of taxes} {10,65,290) 21,56,791
Total other comprehensive income {10,65,890) 24,56,751
Total eomprehensive income for the period (Cewprising Profit/{Loss] and {5,17,42,42,276}) {1,35,63,24,146)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period}
Earnings per share {Face Value Rs.10/- per share) :
{1} Basic {in Rs.) (58.41} [1.58)
{2) Dikuted {in Rs.) {58.41) {1.58)
Summary of significant accounting policies 142

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.
For and en behalf of Board of Directors
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SURAT HAZIRA, BIH-6 TOLLWAY FRIVATE LIMITED

CiN -E145206HR2009PTCORS050

STATEMENT OF CHAGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity share capital

E Amount in Rupees
| A Far the Yaar entled For the Year anded
Movement during ihe pariad
reThe R March 31, 2021, _ March 31, 2020
Particulurs Numbor of Share capital Nurber of shares Share capital
sharay [Rupres) {Rupees}
Sharas having face value of Rs 10/-
Balance at beginning of the peried #,E5,72,000 58,57,20,000 8,85, 7,000 88,57,30,000
Issued during tha pericd - - . -
|Balance at the end of the period 8,85,73,000 88,57,30,000 H,85,73,000 £8,57,30,000
Movament in other equily: Amount in Rypeas
Partitulars Share Reserves and Surplus
Application
Securities Total
mun.e-,! Pramium Reserve Retained Earnings
pending
Balarice at the beginning of the reporting period 1.¢.01.04,202¢ - 3,46,25,70,000 {4,72,61,48,787)|  (1,26,35,74,787)
Profitf floss) for the parind {5,17,31,77,386)|  (5,17,21,77,286)
Other Comprehensive Income - {10,65,800) {10,65,800)
Total Comprehensive Income {5.12,42,43,276)|  [5,17,42,13,375)
Balance at the end of the reporting pericd i.e. 31.03,2021 - 3,46,25,70,000 %50,03,88,063)| (6,43,78,18,063)
Previous Year Ameunt [n Rupees
Particulars Share Resenves and Surptus
Application
money S?turities Retained Earnings Tetzl
pending Prazmiun Reserye
aflotment
Ralance at the beginning of the repering period f.e. 01.04,2019 B 346,25 70,000 (3,32,98,20,641) 13,27,45,338
Profity {loss) for the pariod {1,39,84,80,937)  (1,39,84,20,937)
Other Comprehensive lincome - - 21,556,791 21,536,791
Total Cornprehensive Income {1.39,63.24, 146}  (1,39,63,24,146)
Balance at the end of the reporting pariod i.e. 71.03.2¢20 - 3,46,25, 70,000 4,72,61,44,787}|  (1,26,35,74,787)
Sumtinany of sighificant accoumting policies PR

The accompanying notes are an integsal part of the financial statements.

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
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SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIM :L145206HR2009PTCO3Z059
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31st, 2021
5. No. Particufars 202021 301920
) Rupgzas Rupees
A |Met prafit f {loss) hefurs tax 5,17, 42,43,27R) {1,35.,632, 24,146
Adjusiracnt far
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,17,79,14,495 £9,74,24,340
Intarest and Finaneial expense 2,78,73,00,345 2,27,11,36,023
Othar Income {78,43,185) [1,17,79,10M
LossHGaing un Sale of Fixed Assets (31,912} 0, 70,488
Gein on Substantial Modification of CRPS/HCD (3,98,01,92,5509) -
Impairement Loss on Hoad Assets 7,06 28 26, 615 -
Gain on Docapitalization of fixed assets - {36,59,353)
Cperating profit before adjustments 1,35,57,30,524 1,75,77,68,2a4
Adjustments for change operating assets and liabilities:
Increase f {Decrease) in long term provisions 348,93,792 {38,83,05,681)
Increase [ {recrease} in current financial lishilites 1,20:38, A8 143047, 142
Increasa / {Decrease} in trade pavable [5,43,95,260) §9,06,957
kicrease f {Decrease} in other non-current financial liabdlities - {1%,11,21,438)
Increase f {Decrease}in gother crrent liabilities {1,03,424) 1,764
tncrgasa f {Decrease)] in short tarm pravisions {46),56,54,687) 40,51,59,022
{Increase] f Decrease in brade receivables 14,61,61,005 {14,87,56,665)
{Incraase] f Decreasein othar current assets (18,37,63,646) [23,95,846)
{Increase] / Decrease in other fipancial asset 45,065,511 [3%,38,448)
fIncreasa) f Decrease in other nor current assets - {966}
et cash genarated fram flused in) operating activifies 1,21,4B,68,543 1,02,65,84,120
Dircet taxes paid {het of refunds) 331,002,034 358,189,572
et Cashiused in)fgenerated from Operating Activities 1,24,79,70,527 1,66,24,13,602
B |Cash flow from investing activities
{Purchase)f/Transfer of fixed assets {1,73,977) {5,0+1,49,387}
SalofTranster of fied asscts 45,083 1,509,083
{Irvvested) fRedemption of FO 7,21,70,924 {4,21,70,924}
tntgrast reeeived 78.43,185 90,03,115
et cesh {used in}/menerated from investing activities 7,08 85 215 {8,31,58,113}
€ |Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of Mon current borvowings {79,21,32 887 147,43,60,227)
mterest and Financial expenses paid [1,06,30,79,383) {111,66,36,921)
Payment of Interest Portion of Lease Liabilities {7,2/,868) [8,73,310)
Payrient of Principal Postion of Lease LialllIgres (24.16,173) {21,598,930)
Mot cash {used in}/generated from financing activitios [1.85.82.56,312) {1,54,70,69,393)
Met inerease [ [decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents (AsB+C} {53,05,00,520) {1,78,13,819)
Cach and cash aguivalants ag at the heglnning of the yoar 57,34, %7 633 69,13,01,502
Cash and cash eyuivalents as at the end of the year 14,249,287, 168 B7,34,87.683
Motes:
1.Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method* as set out in the ind AS P-Cash Fiow statoments
. Reconcilation of Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year:
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end as per cash flow statament
14,79,87,163 57,34,57.683
Balances with banks heid as Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) ; {50,00,00,824)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end as per Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2021 14,29,57,163 1% 34,80, 7548

3. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies 1 & 3
The accempanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors ! -
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SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMIIVED
CIN :U45206HR2009PTCO32059

Wotes to Financlal Statements for the period ended 31st March 2021

1

2.01

Carporate Information

The Company has been awarded Contract of Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Teansfer (DBFOT) basis, the fourdaning
of Gujarat / Maharashtra Border —Surat Hagzira post section of NHDP Phase-Il| through Public/ Private sector Partnership
{PPF} on National Highway - & with approximate length of 131.50 Kilometers in Lhe State of Gujarat, under concession
agreement dated 18th May 2009 with the National Highways authority of India. The Concession agreement is {or 3 period
of 19 years commencing from the appointed date of 30kh March 2010 in clause 3.1.1 of the said agreement. The Company
has achjeved Provisional Completion Operational date on 19th August, 2015 and started toll colleclion operation we.e.f.
215t Aupust, 2015.The Company has achieved Provisiongl Completion Operalicnzl-2 date on Sth Qctober, 2016 and
Provislonal Completion Operational-3 on 29th March, 2018. The Company has achieved Final Project Compietion w.e.f
29,03 2018 vid |E letter dated 06.11.2020.The concession period is 19 years which shall end on 29th Mareh, 2028
However as per ¢lause 29.1 of CA, Actual traffic on October 1, 2018 { Target Date § was 23,485 PCU which is ahout 35%
lesser than Target traftic; hence the company envisage possibility of 20% increasze in concession pariod Le., till January 14,
2033,

In order to give Covid -19 relief te concessionaire, Ministry al Read Transport & Highway vide its circularffetter ne Covid-
19/ReadMap/)S(H) /2020 dated June 3, 2020 & NHAI Policy no 18.46/2020 dated June 22, 2020 has issued guidance on
extension of crincession peicd. Additional 36 days extension has been assumed on account of COVID-19 a5 per NHAI
guidelines.

These Financial Statements are approved for issue in actordance with the resalution of the directors on September 15,
2021,

Significant Accounting Policies

Hasis of preparation

{al Compliance with IndAS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with indian Acceunting Standards {Ind AS) notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

fbi Basis of meosurement

The financial stalements have been preparcd on a historical cost basis, oxcept for the following items

ttems ) . Measuremeant basis
Certain financial assets and liakilities | Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability Fair value of plan assets {if anyl less present value of defined benefit
Mssets held for sale fair value less costs to ssll

fc) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformily with IndAS requires the management to make astimates and
assumptions considered in the reporied amounts of assets, labilities (including cortingent liabilities), inceme and
expenses. The Management believes thal the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable, Actual results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are knawn / materialize. Estimates include the uselul lives of
property plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations In
respect of ratirement benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing obligations, fair value measurement ete,

{d) Measurement of fair valies

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-
financial assets and liahilities. Fair value measurements are categarized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degroe to which
the inpuls 1o the Fair value measuremeants are observable and the sipnificance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inpuls are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at
measurement date

s Level 2 inputs other than gquoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

* Level 3 inputs for the asset or liahility that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).
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b)

2.04

Presentation of finavcial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Schedudz 1
to the Componies Act, 2013 (“the Act”]. The (ash Flow Statement has been propared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance
Sheot and Statement of Profit and Loss, us prescribed in Schadude Il to the Act, are presented by way of notes farming part
of accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the natified Accounting Standards.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to two decimal places in line with the
requirements of Schedule |11

Revsnue recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers # with the date of initial application
being April 1, 2018 . Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers, mandatory for reporting perind beginning on ar
after April 1, 2018 replaced existing revenue recognition requirements e Ind AS 18 Bevenue Recopnition and Ind AS 11
Construction Contracts. There were no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings as on April 1, 2018.

Accordingly, the policy for Bevenue is amended as under:

The Company derives revenue primarily from toll eoliection and olher miscellaneous construction contracts. Toll
collections from the users of tho infrastructurs facility constructed by the Company under the Service Concession
Arrangement is accounted for based on completion of the performance obligation which largely coincides with actual toll
collection from the user. Revenue from sale of smart cards is accounted on recharge basis. To recognize revenue, the
Company applies the following five step approach; {1] idantify the contract with a customer, {2} ideniify the performance
obligations in the contract, (3} delermine the transaction price, (4] aliocate the transaclion price to the performance
ohligation in the contract, and {5} recognize revenue when a performance ohligation is satisflied. Revenue frem sale of
smart cards is accounted on receipt basis.

Ar contract inception, the Company assesses fts promise to transter services to a customer to identify separate
performance obligations, The Caompany applies judgment to determine whether each senvice promized to a customer are
capable of being distinet, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised services are combined and
accounted as a single performance obligation. For performance obligations where control is transferred over time, revenue
are recognized by measuring progress towards completion of the parformance obligation. The selection of the method {o
measure progress towards completion requiras judgient and is based an the nature of the services 1o be provided. The
method for recognizing revenues and cost depends onthe nature of the services rendered.

Dihers

Insurance and olher claims are recognized as revenue on reasonable assurance of receipt.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive is established. Other items of income are accounted as and when
the right to receive arises and recovery is certain.

Operating Leases
The company assesses at cankracl inceplian whether a contracl is, or contzing, 2 lease. That s, if the contract conveys the
right to contral the use of an identified asset for a period of tirae in exchange for censideraion.

a) Right -of- use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of lease {i.e the date the underlying asset is
avallable for use), Right o use assets are rmeasured at cost, bess any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease iiabilities. The cost of right-of-uze assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct cast incurred, and lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received.

Right 1o use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease terim and the estimated useful life
of the assets as decided by the compaty.

if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term ar the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The righl-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer {o note 2.14 for accounting policies of impairment of non-
financiai assets.
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b) Lease Liahilidtes

At the commencement date of lease, the company recognizes lease Rabllitios measured at the present value of [oase
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease’ payments primaarily comprise of fixed payments,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its ncremental horrowing rale at the jease
commencerment date because the rate implicit in the lease is nat readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease Habilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduge for the lease payment made.

c} Short-term leases

The company applies the short-term [ease recognition exemption 1o 1ts short-term ieases of office spaces (1. those lease
that have o lease term of 12 months ar ess from the commencement date and do not contain 2 purchase optian]. [t alss
apnlies the lease of low value assets recognition exemption Lo leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value, lease payments of short-term leasas are racognised as expenses on straight ling basis over the lease term.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin maoney depesits, earmarked balances with banks and other
bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term highly liguid investments being not free from mare than
insignificant risk of change are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents. Bank ovardrafts which are part of the cash
management process is included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, Cash How
from operating activities s reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit/[loss) is adjusted for
the effects of:

{a) transactions of a non-cash nature;

{b} any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure aperating eash receipts or payments and,

{c] alk other itemns of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash Hows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information. Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) are reflacted as such in the Cash Flow Stalemoent. Those
cash and cash equivalents which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheoet are also included under
this eategory with a specific disclosura,

Current & Mon Current classification ;

Current Asset :

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the fallowing criteria:

{3} it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or cansumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b} it 15 held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

{c] Ivis expected to be realized within twolve months after Lthe reporting date, or

{d] It is cash or cash equivalent unless i 15 restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for al least twelve
manths after the reperting date.

All other assets shall be classified as nob-current,

Current Liabilities:

A liability shall be classified as current when 1L satisfies any of the following critaria:

(a} it is expected 1o be settled in the comparny's normal operating cycle;

{b} it is held primarily [or the purpose of being traded;

{r} it is due to be settfed within twelve months after the reporting date : or

(d) the company does not have an uncanditional right o defer setthament of the liability Far at least twalve mantks after
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could at the oplion of the counterparty, result in its settfement by tha issue of
equity instruments do not effect its ¢lassification. All other lisbilities shall be classified as pon-current.
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2.10

Property, plant and equipment {PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at hislorical cost less accumuiated depraciation and cumulative impairmeant.
Historical cost includes expenditure that'is directly attributable to acquisition of the items.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset's carmying amount or recognised as a separate assct, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the itern wilk flow to the entity and the eost of Lhe item can
be measured reliably. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable and for gualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Compaey's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
catepories of property, plant and equipment when completed znd ready for intended uze.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on Straight fine basis at the usefut lives specified in the schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 except mabile phone which are depreciated with two year useful life from date of acquisiticn.
Depreciation on additionsf deductions is calculated pre-rata from/ to the month of additions/ deductions.

An itern of property, plant and equipmant is derecognised upen disposal. Any gain or [oss arising on the disposal of 2n iem
of property plant and equipment is determined a3 the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the statement or profit and oss.

Far transilion to IndAs, the Company has elected to continue with the carrving value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 01, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying valuce
as its deerned cost on the transition date.

Depreciation charge for impaired asseis is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of
the asset is aliocated over its remaining useful life,

Intanglkle assats

Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits that are attrithutable to the asset wil
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of
tax/duty credits availed, if any, Jess accumulated amartisation and cumulative impairmaent.

Toll Projects (Right ta charge users)

Tall collectlon rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, represent the right to collect toll
revenue from the users of the public service [ road) during the concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer
("BOT"} project undertaken by the Company. Toll collection rights are capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of
the project at the cumulative construction costs plus the present value of ebligation towards negative grants and additional
congessipn Tee payable 1o MNational Highways Autherity of india {"NHAI"}/State authorities, if any. Till the completion of tha
project, the same i3 recognised under intangible assets under development.

The cost incurred for work beyend the original scope per Concession agreement {normally roferred a3 "Change of Scopc”}
is capitalized as intangible asset under development as and when incurred, Reimbursement in respect of such amounts
from NHAI/State authorities are reduced frem the carrying amount imtangible assets to the extent of actual receipis.

Pre-operative expenses including administralive and other general overhead expenses that are directly attributable to the
developrnent or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible asseis.

Intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as "intangible
assets under development”.

Amartisation of Intangible assets

Tall collection rights n respect of road projects are amortized over the period of concession using the revenue based
amortization method prescribed under Schedute Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Under the revenue based method,
amortisation is provided based on proportion of actual reviénue earned till the end of the year o the total projected
revenue froem the intangible asset expected to be earncd over the concession period. Total privjected revenua is roviewed
at the end of each finahcial vear and is adjusted to reflect the changes in earlier estimate vis-a-vis the actual revenue
earned tilf the end of the year so that the whole of the cost of the intangiole asset s amortised over the concessicn period.

Investments

Trade investments cornprise investments in entilies in which the Group has strategic business interesl,

Investments, which are readily realizable and are intended to be heid for not more than one year, are ctassified as current
investments. All ether investments are classified as long term investments,

Long-term Investrents {excluding investment properties), are carried individuaily at cost less provision for diminution,
other than temporary, in the value of such investments. Current investments are carrled individually, al the lower of cost
and fafr value. Cost of investmaents Include acguisition charges sueh as brokerage, fees and duties. The determination of
carrying amount of such invastments is done on the basis of weighted average cost of each individual investment.

Investment properties are measured initially 2t cost, incleding transaction costs. Subsequent to initial rocognition,

Tnveslment propering ate measuyr &gﬁc%ﬁ?dﬁp with the requirements of cost model.

o e,

-~
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2.3

Rorrowing costs

Borrawing costs include interest calculated using the effective intarest method, amertisation of ancillary costs incurred and
exchange differences anising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment 10 Lhe
interest cost. Costs in conpection with the borrowing of funds to the extent net directly related to the acquisition of
gualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenurc of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to
and utilized for acguisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, pertaining o the period from commencemeant
of activitias relating to construction / develnpmant of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalization of such assel are
added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged Lo the Statement of Profit and
Loss during extended pariods when active develepment activity on the gualifying assets is interrupted.

Earnings per shave

Dasic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (foss) for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares cutstanding during the year, Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (Joss} for the year as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable Laxes} relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered Tor deriving basic earnings
per sharo and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential aquity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Polential dilutive gguity shares are deamed to be
converted 3s at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair valug {I.e. average market value
of the outstahding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / revarse share splits and bonus
shares, az appropriate.

income taies
The income tax expense or credil for Lhe year is the tax payable on current yoar's Laxable income based on the applicable
incorae tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attribulable Lo temporary differences and to
unused tax |psses. The current income 1ax charge Ts calculated on the basis of tax laws enacled or substantivaly enacted at
the end of the reparting pericd. Management periodically evaluates, positions Laken in [ax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and prowvisions are established where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with Lhe tax laws, which gives future ecanomic benefits in the form of
adjustment Lo future income tax liahility, is considersd as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay
normal income tax. Accardingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it Is highly probable that future econamic benefit
associated with it will flow to the entity.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, an temporary differences arising batween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in tho financial statements. However deferred inceme tax it nof accounted if it arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or lizhility that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit {tax less). Deferred income tax is determined using Lax rates and laws that have been enucted or substantively
anaciled by the end of the reporiing period and are expected to apply when the related deferred incame tax asset/liability
is realised ar settled.

Deferred tax assets arc recognised for all deductible temporary differencos and unused tax lasses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available o utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax aszets and deferrad Lax liakilities are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current
Lax 3asets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same autharity,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, oxcept ©o the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity whereln the related tax is also recagnised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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Impairment of assels

The carrying vatues of assels / cash generating uniis at each balance shieet date are reviewed for impairment if any
indication of impairment exists. The following intangible agsets are tested for impairment each financial year even if there
fs na indication that the asset is impaired:

{a} an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and (b) an intangihle asset that is amartized ovar a parlod exceeding
ten years from the date when the asset is available for use.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such
excess amount. The impairment loss is recoghised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and loss, unless the asset is
carried at revalued amount, in which case any impalrment |oss of the revalued asset is trealed as a revaluation decrease to
the extent 3 revaluation reserve is availabie for Lthat asset.

The recoverabla amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discaunted (o their present value using a pre-tax diseount ratoe that reflects the current
markat assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the eslimated future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

\When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an assct {other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting
periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets
such reversal is not recognised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision Is recopnised when the Company has a present obligation {lagal or constriclive) as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which o reliakle estimate can
be madeo,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present ohligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, When 2
provision is measured using the cash lNows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the ecenomic benefits reguired to settle a provisian are expected to be recoverad from a third party, a
receivable is racognised @s an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivahle ean be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed In notes In case of 3 present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to sattle the obligation or a present obligation arising fram past events, when
ne reliahle estimata is possible . Contingent assets are disclozed in the financial statements where an inflow of ecenomie
henefits are probable.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes o party to the contractual provisions of
the instrumcnts. Finandial assets and financial liabilities are initlally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributahble 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {ether than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value lhrough profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial Habilities, as appropriate, on initial recognitlan, Transaction costs directly attributable o the acyuisition of
financial assets or financial liahilities at fair wvalue through profit or loss are recognised immadiately in profit or loss.

Financial Assats

All recounised financial assets are subsequantly measured in their enticety at either amortised cost ar fair value, depanding
on the classification of the financial assets

investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amoriised cost {unkess
the same are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FYTRL)):

* The assetis held wilhin & business model whose ohjective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual eash flows; and
= The contractual terms ol Instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows Uhat are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments thot meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through aother
comprehensive incorme {unless the same are designated as fair value through profit ar loss)

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

= The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Pebt instruments at F¥TPL is a residual category for debit instrumsents and all changes are recognised in profit ar foss.
Imvestments in equity instruments are classified as FYTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OC1 for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Interes{ income, dividend income and exchange difference {on debl insteument) an FYTOC! debt instruments is recognised
in profit or loss and other changes in fair value are recognized in OC! and accumulated in other equity. On dispasal of dabt
instrumaents FYTOCE the ¢ FINE-gain of 1053 previously accumolated in other equity is reclassilied to profit & loss,
Howeverin case of e i mﬁh&é\gf\{ﬂﬁtl cumulative gain ar lass is not reclassified to profit & loss on disposal of
investments. R
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Financial Liabilities

Financlal liabilittes are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities as fair value through prafit or oss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effoctive hedpe, as appropriate. All
financial Kabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
autributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amoertised costs using Effective Interest Rate method.

Financial liabilities at {air value through profit or loss [FYTPL) are subsequently measured at fair value,

Financial guarantee contracts are subsequaently measured at the higher of the amount of 055 allewance determined as per
impairiment requirements of Ind AS 10% and the amount recognized less cumulative amartisation.

Financial liabiliy is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expiras.

Insurance clalms
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be adimitted and to the extent that the
armount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasanable to expect ultimate collection.

Claims

{i} Company's claims against MHAI for additional scope of wark, utility shifting and other works are accounted for as and
when received.

{il} Contractar's claims regarding additional scope of work, utility shifting and ather warks are admittahle and accounted for
as and when refated clalms of the Company are recelved from MHAIL

{i1i} The other claims against the company are accounted for as and when settled. The other claims by the Company are
accounted for as and when received,

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expendilure, Commitmaents are classified and disclosed as followrs:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuied on capital account and not provided for

Cther commitments related 10 sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid
excessive details.

Employee Berefit

Employee benefits include providenl fund, superanneation fund, employee stare insuramce scheme, gratuity fund,

compensated absences, long service awards and post-empioyment medical benefits.

¥ Short tarm Ernployea Benefit

All empleyee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short ferm
employee benefils. The benefits like solarfes, wages, short term compensated absences ote. and the expected cost of
banus, ex-gralia are recognised in the pericd inwhich the employee renders the related service,

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expecled ta be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employess are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These henefits inchude performance
incentive and compensated absences which are expected to ocour within twefve months afrer the end of the periad in
which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of shor-term compensated absences is accounted as undor ;

{a} in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that Increase thair entitiement of
[uure campensated absences; and

b} in case of non-accimulating compensated absences, when the ahsences accur,

ii. Post employment benefits

{a] Defined contributlon plans:

The Company's superannuation scheme and State governed provident fund linked with employee pension scheme are
definzd cortribution plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recopnised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

{b} Defined benelit plans:

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Uit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, The discaunt rate used for determining the present value of the obiigation under
defined benefit plans, is based on the marke! yicld on government securities.

{c } Cther long term Employee Benefit

The obligation for other long term employes benefils such as lang term compensated absences, liability on acoount of
Retention Fay Scheme ei}\rq.-ég;d‘gﬁjg_ In the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in {i{b)
abova. -
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SURAT HAZIRA KH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN :U45206HRZ009PTCO9059

Notas to Financial Statements for the pericd ended 33st Rdarch 2021

-

Other Mon Current Assets [Amount in Rupees)
As gt Asg at
Particidars
far 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Security deposit 53,8%,194 53,858,196
Total 53,809,196 53,89,196
Trade Recaivables
ieul Asat As at
Particular Mar 31,2021 |  War 31, 2020

Considered good - Unsecured
ETC Receivahles

43,38,955

22,48,81,112

==

Patticulars

Mar 33, 2021

Grant Receivahle 7.43,81,112
Total 7,87,20,067 22,48,81,112
LCash and Cash Equivalents
As at As at

Mar 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
On current account

14,08,62,288

17,05,92,008

10

11

12

Cash on Hand 21,24 875 28,594,745
Tatal 14,29,87,163 17,34,86,754
Bank Balances Gther Than Above
Farticulars 'C_Es at As at
Mar 31, 2021, Nar 31, 2620
yBalantes with banks held as Debi Service Reserve (DSRA} - 50,00,00,929
Term depasit baving maturity more than 3 month [ess than 1wesn - F,21,70,924
Total J] - 57,21,71,853
Other Financial Assets
Particwlars As at As at
Nar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Change of Scape Receivable 1,21,26,794 1,21,26,794
Inlizrest on term deposit - 27,775,993
Other Receivables -Related Party - 24,87,244
QOther Receivables -Qlhers 86,09,118 79,111,392
Total 2,404,35,912 2,53,01,423
Current Tax Asset (Mot}
A s at As at
Particulars
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 21, 2020
TOS recoverablc 18,78,505 3,49,80,539
Total 18,78,505 3,45,80,530
Dther Current Assets
Pariiculars As at As at
iar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Propaid Expenses/lnterest 19,37,66,314 57,501,011
WCT Receivable 6,84,043 25,47,579
GST Receivable 13,66,273 18,21,718
Advance to Supplier 3,758,524 3,11,300
Total 19,61,96,154 1,24,22,508




SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY FRIVATE LIMITED

12 Share Capital

CIN :U45206HR2009PTCA39050
Notes to Financial Statements for the perigd ended 315t March 2021

Amount in Rupeeas

Particulars Asat As at
Rarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
SRARE CAPITAL
AUTHCRISED:
Eguity Shares of As 10/ each £3,60,00,000 £8,60,00,000
Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each 9.92,23,00,000 9,98,33,00,000
10,86,9%,00,030 10,86,93,00,000
ISSLIED, SURSCRIBED & PAID UP:
Edjuity Shares of R5 10/ each fully paid up. B8,57,30,000 §8,57,30,000
Total £3,57, 50,000 &8,57,30,100
Foot Mates:
i.Reconciliation of the nurber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and as on 31st March 2021
As at
Particutars s at Farch 31, 2021 Niarch 31, 2020
Number Amountin Rs. Mumher Amcunt In Rs.
rurmber of equity shares-at the beginning of the ]
vear 2,85,7%,000 §8,57,30,000 8,85,73,000 B8,57,30,000
Equity shares Issuad during the year R _ _ _
Murnber of equity shares at the end of the Yuar 5.85,73,000 £8,57,30,000 885,73,000 B8,57,30,000

ii. Terms and rights attached {o equity shares

The Compary has only one class of oguity shares having a par value of ks, 10/~ per share. Each holder of equity sharns is entitled 10
oae vole pershare, During the period ended 315t March, 2021, no dividend (Provious Year NI is declarad by the Board of Directors,

ili. Shures held by holding/ Ultimate holding camy

pany ant/or thalr subsidiares/associates :

As atnarch 31, 2021

As ot Biarch 21, 2020

Wamie of the Sharehaldor
Mo of shares hald % of Holding Mo. of shares held ot of Hokding
Equity shares of 10/- each fully paid
A, Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company
Raadis Concesiones S.LU
| Formerly known as [sofux Corsan Concesiongs
5.8, - Iadrid} -subsidiary of Witimate Holding,
Campary W s Raadls Transportation Holding :
SLU 100,249,038 11.32% 1,00,29,038 113158
B. Hoiding Company
Indus Concessions India Pyt. Ltd.
[Formerly ltnown as selus Corsan Concessions
India Pvt. Ltd.) 592,57 462 66.90% 5,92,57 452 55,90
. Detalls of sharehalders holding rmore than 5% shares in the company
As at Klarch 31, 2021 s at Blarch 31, 3020
Name of the Sharehalder
Mo. of sharas hald % of Holding Hou of shares held % of Holding
Equilty shares of 10/- each fully paid
Raoadis Concesiones 5.LU
{ Formerly known as |salux Corsan Concesiome s
S.A. - Madrid) 100,259,028 11.32% 1,010,29,028 11323
Indus Concesslons Indla Pet. Ltd.
{Furmerly knoun as Isolux Corsan Concesslons
India Put, B4} 59%57.462 66.59(05 5.92 57462 66,90
Soma Enterprlse Limited 1,171,265,2 60 12.56% 1,11,26,260 12.56%
Soma Tollway Pt Lid. £1,60,240 a2 1% 21,60,240 0,21%
Total Equity $hares E.9%,73,000 100.00% B, 55,73,000 180.00%




14 Other Equity

Particulars Ag at As ap
Iiarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Securitigs Fremium, Acoount 3,16,25,70,000 3,46,25,70,000
Retained Farning (9,90,02,88,063) 14,72,61,44,787)
Total {6,43,78,18,063) {1,26,35,74,747)

Meavement In other equity:

Share application

Resarves ang Surplus

money pending  {Securitios Premium | Ratalned Earnings Total
allotmant Reserve
Balance at the bepinning ofthe reporting period - 346,25 70,000 | {4,72,61,41,787) [1,26,35,74,787)
i 01.04.2020
‘Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - {5,17,42,43,276) {5,17,42 43 276}
Balznce al the end of the reporting period i.e.
31034021 - 3,44,25,20,000 | {5,90,03,58,063) {6,43,78,18,063)
Pravious Yaar
Shara application Reserves and Surplus
maney pending | Secyrities Premum| L ogs Totat
alletment Resaree
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 3,46,25,70,000 [3,32,U8,20,641) 13,27,48,350
j.e (HL.01.2018
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - [1,39,63,24,146) {1,38,63 24,146}
Balance at the end of the reporting period Le. - 3,46,25,70,000 {4,72,61,44,781 {1,26,35,74,787}
31.03.2020
Nan-carrant borrowings Amount bn Rupaes
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Securad Laans
{i} Term Loans
Fronm banks 7,1543,17,257 8,63,38,25,770
From Financial institution (HFCL) 1,29,36,24,0R8 1,38,96,24,0R3
From Other 2,19,67,89,135 1,A1,24,13,509
Less: Current Blaturitios of Torm Loan (82,868,207} {79, 11,47,385)
9,81,59,09, 414 10,64,57,15,082
{ii} 0.01% Cumulative redeemable preference g,19,02,71,7/6 493,31,00,003
shares (CRPS) of 18- each fully paid issued to
Ienders
{ Faer: Valuz 15,998,323 Crore rafer foot notes)
Less: Current Maturies of CRPS - {5 44 76,73,040)
5,19,02,71,4v6 2,48,54,26,153
{ili) Man- Convertikle Dehentures (NCD) of India 71,60,27,822 1,09,54 86 641
lnfrastrueture Finance Company Limlted at
caupoh rate 0.01% p.a.
[ Fare Yalue Rs.137.86 Crore refer foct notos)
Less: Current Maturies of NCD - (75,723,206 0600
71,60,27,822 34,31,50,581
Tatal 15,72,22 65, 008 13,47,43,02,716
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2

Fant Motes:
Detalls of shareholding of Cumulative Redeemable Prefarence Share of Rs.10/- each fu Iy paid up Issued to lenders amounting to
Rs.S9533 00/ -

As at Blarch 31, 2021 As at Berch 31, 2020
Mame of the *hareholder
Wo. af shares held % af Holding No. of shares held % of HoldIng
Union Bank of India (E-Andhra bank) 4,67,51 600 A.68% & 67 54,600 A BE%
. T, "
Asset Reconstruction Company {India) Limited 23,41,55,340 2345 148,02,43,140 14,055
Centrai Bank of India* . Q,00%. 9,39,12 200 Q.A1%,
Union Bank of India {E Corporation Bank) 6,25,18 500 B.26% 6,25,18,500 B26%
Indian Oversgas Banl 6,90,13,580 &.91% 0, 90,13, 580 5.91%
Punjab Mational Bank {E-Qricntal Bank of .
200,.23.25, ,29,93.4.

commerce) 0.29.58,450 20,335 20,29,33,450 20.33%
Punjal Nationaf Bank 4,70,87 840 A.72% 4,70,87,840 4.72%
State Bank of India 1290.62,110 17.94% 17,90,62,310 17.94%
uC0 Bank 9,39,55,840 9.41% 9,3%9,556,8490 9.41%
Union Bank Of India G,27,83,690 6.29% 6,27,83,690 6.20%
Total Cumulative redeemable preference shares 93,83,30,004 104 99,33,30,080 10425

* During the year, Central Bank'of India has assigned its Part-l & Part-It facility to Assefs Reconstruction Company {India) Liritad
[ARCH) vide assignment agreemenl dated 31,12.2020 with effect from 31,12, 2020, Howaover, Part-li facililty i.e Preference Shares
could not be transferred in favour of ARCIL in depository records as on 31.03.2021, which has been reflected in deposilory records
diated 14.05. 2021,

During the financtal yoor 201818, the Company had approached to lenders for restructuring of term loan as per RR| guldelines vide
ils clreular dated February 12, 2018 bearing reference no.RBI2017-18/131DBR. No . BF.BC, 10172104 0487201 7-18 and reference date
was declared as March 1,2018 and cut-gff date as April 1, 2018,

Consequently aggregate loan amount of K5, 238 L.98 Crure which includes principal outstangding Rs.2261.14 Crove and interest
overdue of Rs. 130,84 Crore as off cut-off date bifurcated inte Pare1 Delt Rs.1205.79 Crore and Pard 11 Facility Rs,1136.19 Crore which
is further bifurcated into (i) Rs,.928.33 Crore of restructurad facilities converted into cumulative redeemable preferance shares (i)
R5.137.86 Crore of restructured facilities converted into non-canvertible debentures, Flnandng documents of restructured facilities
executed on Avgest 24, 2018 and concluded on August 27, 2018,

The tompany is regularly servicing its debt obligation of restructured facilities. However restructured faciliby still classified as Man
Perfarming Assets (MPA) as on repoarling date In terrms of above stated RB] circular.

In view of the sacrifices made by lenders, the lenders have a right of recompense for the sacrifice. Such right is at the sele discretlon
of lenders. The campany does not have a right to defer the liability for nexe 12 months in 1he evenluality of the lenders exercising
ripht of recompense. Thevefgre, the company has classified Lhe right of recompense as current borrowings [See Nota 18} The
tentative amount specilad In the agreement |5 Rs.245.50 erores which will be recoprputed wihen the right of recomnpense is
exercised by the lenders. However, such amount cannot exceed the amount set out in Sanction Letters. The agreement does nol
specily any formula based on which the amount of sacrifice shall be recomputed. Fhe company has recognised interest @5.5% being
ihe tnterest on Part | facility on such right of recomponsa, Such accrued interest (s presented as Other Financial Uabllitles: Curvent
{See Nate 20)

For computation of rvight of recompense Rs.245.50 Crore, redemption of Part Il Facility have been considered as under :-

Cash Flows FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2027
Cnerational Cash Flows MIL MIl. 308,149
Mon Operational Cash Flovs/Clainis Realisation a20 28 MIL

The Compaiy had esthnated above Part-ll faclity payment in these years in anticipation of award of cfaim against NHA! through
Arbitration Tribunal proceedings. During the yrar, Arbitration Tribunal has not awartled any cash claim (The compay on 15.07.2021
has challenged the award unider Section 34 of Arbitration & Canciliation Act, 1996 before the Hon'ble High Court of Dell, refer nole
45{d) }.In view of abave, campny does nat envisage any payment un account of recompanse cfavse In near future and effect of any
payment on account of recompense will be cansidered whaon cause for such event becomes effective/invokable and will ba then
accounted for accordingly,

It wlew ef no cash ciaim, current liabilities of Part-1l facility classified as Non Current Liabilities as perterms of Master Debt
Resolution Agreement (MIORA} with | enders executed un Aupust 24, 2018 concluded on Augtst 27, 2018, Consequently, effect of
gain on recalculation of carrving value of liahji BN s |agsiticalion of Part |l facility recognised as exceptional ilems.
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Security of Part | Detnt

"The Secured Borrowings are secured by:
a first mortgage and charge in favour of the Lenders, in aform sallsfactory to the Lenders of all the Garrower's immavable
properties (save and excopt the Project Assets, as defined in the Concession Agreement), both present and futers, il any;

& first charge by way of hypathecation in favour of the Lenders of all the: Borrower's maveatle properties including but not limitad
toall eurrent and nait-current assets, moveable machinery, machinery spares, equipment, tools and acressories, vahlcles and all
othes rovable assets, bath present end future, save and except the Project Assets, as defined in the Cancession Agreemonl;

an assignment by the Borrower, in faveur of the Lenders, of [save and axcept the Project Assets, as defined in the Concession
Agreomenl)

(i} first charge an all the Burrower's Recoivables, Accounts, book debts and all Fights and interests prasent and future,

(i} the right, title and interest of the Rorrower by way of first charge Into and under ali {3) oF1he Project Dracuments, Concession
Agrecment (b any lelier of credit, Contractor guarantees, liguidatod damages, the guarantecs, other performance warrantiss,
indemnities and securitias that may be furnished in favour of the Borrower by the various tontractors under the Project Dacuments
such as EPC Contract, after obtaining the wiitten consent of the parites thereta, if NECERFANY,

{lll} the right, title and interest of Lhe Borrower by way of first charge in the Other Bank Acrounts including but not lirmlted to the
Trust and Retention Account/Escrow Account and Nebt Servive Reserve AccountiDSRA); and

iv) the right, Uile and interest of the Gorrpwer by way of first charge in, te and under all the Government Approvals, insurance
poficies.

a first charge on all intangible assets of the Barrawer including But not limited to goodwill, nghts, undertakings ang uncalled capital
of the Borrower in favour of the Londers, bally present and future, ranking pari passu with ether lenders save and except the Project
Assets, a5 dofined in the Concession Agreemant;

Pledge of the shares held by Pramoters, in the issued and paid up aguity share capital of the Barrower to the satisfaction of the
Landers equivalent to (o) 51.00% (fifty anc percent) of the shares upto the COL; (I} 33.00% {thirty three percent) of the shares upto
the expiry of 36 (thirty slx} months from the COD; and ¢} Lhereafter 26.00% (twenty six percent), until the Final Settletment Date.

Corporate guaranice of Soma Enterprise Ltd, and Indus Concessiones India Put. Ltd,
ih Undertaking from the Promoters that the Fromaters shall infuse additivnal funds in order 1o make goad any shartfall in cash How
toservice the debt obligations to the Lendersd fund any subisequent cost overrun in implementatian of the Project.

The Term Loans consists burrowing from a consorlium of Ten bankers and a financlal institution.

Securky of Part Il Facility
The Sccured Obligations shall be secured by in Favour of the Security Trusleef Debenture Trustee, Londersy CHPS Heldersf NCD
Hulders as under:

first mortgage and charge in favour of the Lenders, CRPS Holders and the NCB Holders, in a form satisfactory to the Lenders, CRPS
Halders and the MCD Holders of all the Barrower's Immavable properties {save and excepl the Project Assets, as defined in the
Concession Agreement), both present and future, iF any;

afirst charge by way of hypothecation in faveur of the Eenders, CRPS Halders and the NCI Helders of all the Borrower’s moveable
properties including but not imited to all current and non-current assets, woveable machinery, machinery spares, aguipment, tools
and accessories, vehicles and all other movable assets, both present and Fulure, (save and except the Project Assets, as defined in
the Concession Agrecment);

an assignmend by the Borrower, in faveur of the Lenders, CRPS Holiders and the NCD Halders, of (save and except the Project Assots,
as defined in the Concession Agreerment);

i} Nirst charge on all the Bormower's Receivables, Accounts, book debts and all rights and interests present and futurn,

ii] the right, titlz and nterest of the Borrawer by way of first charge into and under alt {a} of the Praject Doorments, Concession
Agreament th} any letter of credit, Contraclor guarantees, liquidated darmages, the guarantees, otier performance warranties,
indernnities and securities that may be furnished in favour of the Bofrower by the varlous contractors under the Project Dacuments
sueh a5 EPC Contract, after obtaining the written consent of the parties thereta, if necessary,

iit] the right, title and Inlerest of the Borrawer by way of firest charge in ihe Other Bank Atcounts ncluding but nol lmited to tho
TRASEscrow Account an DSRA; and

iv] the right, title and interest of the Borrower by way of first charge in, to and under all the Government Appravals, contracts,
licenses, permits, approvals, consents, insurance policies,

afirst charge on all intangible assets of the Borrower including But net limited to poodwill, rights, undertakings and uncalled capital
of the Borrower in favour of ihe Lenders, CRPS Helders and he NCD Holders, both priosent and future, ranking pari passy with other
Lenders, CRPS Holders and the NCD Holders, save and except the Project Assets, as defined in the Concession Apreement;

Pledige of the entire shares hold by Promoters/ Promater Group, in the issued and paid up equity share capital of the Rorrower to
the satisfactlan of the Lenders, CRPS olders and the NCD Holders, unt Lhe Final Settlement Date.

Corporate guaraniee of Surna Enterprise Limited and Indus Concassians ndta Private Limited; and

Undcrtaliing by Promoters in terms of this Agreement.

Provided that the Security Interest stipula shall rank pari-passu inter-se the Lenders, CRPS Holders and Lhe NCO Holders.




i)

Total Part | Debt Commitment is Rs. 1064,47,30,480/-

Riate of Interest @ 9.500% p.a

Terms of Repayment of Part | Debt

Repayment of Loans is to be done in 36 strnctured Quarierly unequal instalments ranging from Rs.0.43 Crores 1o fs.78.49 crores on
hallooning basis commendng fram June 2058 to March 2027 in accordance with Armortization schedule set forth in Schedule D of
Part | Debt of the Master Debl Restrucluring Agreerment dated August 24, 20018 concluded on August 77, 2018,

Repaymeni terms of Ouistanding balanca :

FY 2071-32 30-06-21{ 30-09-21 31-12-31 51-03-22
Repayment Am oot 13,81 36,845 13,81 36,845 27.02,73,680 24,62,73,690
FY 2022-23 3627 30-09-22 31-12-23 31-03-23
Repayment Amoan 18,8363 425 15 8368425 37,67,36,850 37,67,36,850
Fy 2023-24 S0-06-75 30-09-23 31-12-23 31-03-24
Repayment Amnount 25,11,57.800 25,11,57,900 50,23,15,800 501,23,15,800
FY 2044-25 A0-08-24 30-09-24 31-12-24 31-03-25
Repayment Amount 31,30,47.375 31,3947.375 62,78,94,350 62.75,94.750
FY 2025-26 30.06-25 30-09.25 31-12-25 31-03-26
Repayment Aniount 39.24.34,210 19,34,24,215 73480843 TEA8,6H 43K
FY 2026.27 30-06-26 30-08-26 31-12-26 31-03.27
Repaymenl Amaount 73,9%,46,068 | 73,53,46,068 ¥3,93,46,068 73,8246,068

Terms of Repayment of Part |1 Facility

Redemption ef cumulative redoemabic preference shares (CRRS)

The CRPS shall have a term not exceeding 11 years from commencing from decmed date of ssue i.o. 0102018, The redermption of
CRPS shvall e made from Lhird financial quarter of Financial Year 2027 onwards (before the Final Redemption date i.e March
31,2029) aut of available operational cash flows afror repayment of Part 1 and for non-operational cash Tlows inchisding any daims
perlaining to SPY/Comparyy a5 and when received. The redemption shall be subject to following conditions:

a) Retention of minimum cash of IR 20 crore

b} Retention of minlmum cash Lowards Major Maintenance Reserve

Retemption of non-convertible debentures (NCDs}

The NCDs shall have a term not cxcecding 11 years from commaencing from deemed date of allobmend 1.e, 01,04.2018. The
redemptiun of NCDs shall Be made from third financial gquarter of Fnandciat Yoar 2027 onward s {hefoee the Final Redemption date i
March 31,2629) out of available operational cash fiows after repavinent of Part | and/or non-operational cash flows including any
¢tlaims pertaining to SPY/Company as and when received. The redemption shafl be subject to following conditions:

al fetention of minimuem cash of INR 20 @ore

I} Retention of minimum cash towards Major Blaintenance Reserve

16 Lease Linhilities

Amount in Rupess

Barticulars Asat As at As at As at
Niarch 31, 2021 MMarch 31, 2021 Nzrch 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Non -Current Current Man -Currant Current
Asat April 12020 86,05,423 - 1,18,29,419 R
Add; Accretion of Interest 727869 - 8,773,310 _
Less: Payrmentffidjustrment {32, 27.732) - (40,97,3086) R
Less: Current 1case labllity {14,18,553} 19,18,553 {21,00,852) 24 50 f52
Total 41,8B7.007 15,118,553 ol B 5T 24,550,852
17 ieng Term Pravisions
Particulars As &t Asat
fiarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for Empioyee Benefits:
Provision [or Gralulty 1,54,89,867 1,20:13,015
Provision lor Leave Encashrment 1,10,8%,677 78,958,214
Other Provision:
Provision for major maintenance OR, 30,00, 729 5p, 44,18, 500
Tots| 1,01,04,00,773 58,23,30,729




L& Current Borrowings

Particulars s at Ay at
Amount Rs. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
liability to Eenders far Right to Recompense
[refer to note no.15)
As per Note Me.15 2.45,50,00,000 2,45,50,00,000
Add : interest accrued on abiove 74,56,07,997 49,53,26,938
3.23.06,07,997 2,55,03, 26,038
| Less : Interast aocrued ransfer Lo Other
rinancial iabilivy {refer to Note 20) {77,56,07,097} 2.5 50,000,000 (45,53, 26,938}
Total 2,45.50,00,000 | 2,45,50,00,000
19 Trade Payables.
Particulars As at As at

March 33, 2021

Rdarch 51, 3020

[a) Total Qutstanding due of Micra Enlerprise and Small Entenmises

[ Tatal Dutstanding due of other than Micre Enterprise and Smatl

Entergrises 5,65,05,717 11,09,14,976
Tatal 5.6505,717 11,08,04,976
2 Other Financial Liabilities
Partloulars As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current maturity of Tarm Loan
Current makurity of CRPS

82,88,21 070

79,11,47,385
b,44,76,73,940

Cureent rnalurity af NCD - #4,23,26,060
Interest accrued® 2.94,53,965 3,13,23,105
[nterast Accrued on Rlght bo Recompenso

{refer to note ng, 18} 77.56,07,997 46,53,75,938
Payable (ot
{i) NHAI Fers Payatile B,51,093 -
(i) Related Party EPC Contracior far EPC Warks,

Unility Shifting & Road Maintenance # 18,33,04,583 18,50,12,404
{iil) Retention money far other contractars 4,32,17,304 3,74,19,2649
{lv) Salary Payahle 58,41,74% 7,659,506
vl Cher Beponse Payable §,01,99,495 1,53, 74,345
Taral 1,88,44,97,2%5 F.75,63, 72,553

* Differential Interest of Term Loan amounting 1o Rs 2,932,258 445/-is under dispute for the

previous financial year.

I Payable 1o EPC Contractor subject 10 recoveny of cost overran pald as par of EPCwork
done as per amendment EPC Agreement executed from time to time.

21 Prowisians

Particulars Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provisian for Employee Benefits:
Provision for gratuity (current) 5,597,581 2,0B 862
Provision for leave encashment {current) 5,30,244 3,432,660
Cither Provisiom:
Frovislon for major mainterance (Current) - 40,62, 00,000
Total j 11, 27,EXs A6 B2,512
22 othor Current liabilities
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 hiarch 31, 2020
Statutary Dues
Labour Cess Payalle 1,35141 2,231,043
Labour welfare Fund Pavable 1,125 235
TD Payabie 8,52,048 18,396,319
GST Tax Payable 2,27,118 2,31,510
Eniployee provident fund 10,85,425 5,11,626
NP5 *ayable 33,684 22,462
Professional tax 44,000 47,550
Tatal e, 23.79,741 30,323,165
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SURAT HAZIRA NH-G& TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMETED
€N :U25Z06HR2009FTCO32059

Motus Lo Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 20221

Revenue from operation Amount in Ruposs
Particulars For the year ended ] For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 iar 31, 2020
Reverue from operation 1,69,96,81,283 1,62,15,34,453
Total 1,69,96,81,383 1,62,15,39,463
OEM suppar Grant
Particulars For the year ended [ For the year ended
iviar 3%, 2021 Wiar 31, 2020
O & M Support Grant - 4542 803,000
Total - 45,42 80,000
Othar income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Wiar 31, 2020
Imerast on FRR 29,265,188 41,85,914
Interest an security deposit 213,679 298,591
Interest on Tax refund 47,03,318 72,94 604
Reimbiursement of ETC D&M Expenses fram NHAI 10,04, 400 10,300
Other income 36,668,934 62,325,250
Total 1,25,14,51% 1,90,19,354
Construction Incorme
Particulars For the year ended | For the vear endad
hiar 31, 2021 Whar 31, 2020
Constructton Revenue-Utility Shifting - 3,98,64,205
Construction Revenue-Change of Scope - 7,50,984

Total - 4,06,15,189
Canstruction Cost
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Canstruction Cost-Lility Shifting - 3,98,64,205
Construction Cost-Change of Scope - 7,500,984

Total - 4,06,15,189

Operating expanses
Particulars Far the year ended | For the year ended

Mar 33, 2021 Mar 31, 2020

Cash transporation charges 15,57,600 15,57,600
Electricity Charpes 1,22,86,159 1,51,60,022
Repair and maintenance-Roads 18,95,40,146 8,10,99,961
Repair and maintenanue-Others 2.26,18,691 1,31,44,897
Watch & Ward Expenses 2,90,12,502 3,56,93,984
Insurance 3,74,76,209 1,40,75,259
Legal and consultancy charges 2,04,90,375 2,27,32,000
Travelling B, Conveyanco 5,244,527 31,62,.324
Vehicles running chiarpes 1,08,10,677 1.08,16,471
Traffic Study - 35,58,263
Safety Material 1,61,165 3,14,662

32,16,20,051

19,13,74,443




29 Employee banefit expenses

30

2

=

32

3

[*5)

Particulars For the year ended | Eorihe year ended

Mar 31, 2021 Miar 31, 2020
Salarigs 8,36,24,823 8,97,60,652
PFeamployer's contribution 54,34,45%9 57.660,34%
Otheremplaoyee benefits 35,41,747 42,58,758
Total 9,26,01,039 2, 47,85,75%

Fingange cost

Particulars Forihe year #rded § For the year ended

Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2020
Unwinding [nterest on MMR B8,71,75,752 7,8%,37,555

tnterest on Laan
Unwindlng Interest on CRPSENCD

1,05,96,88,043

1,14,55,18,131

{refer nole no.15) 85,7%,05,422 78,33,02,015

Uriwinding Interest on Recompense Right of Lenders

frefer note no.15} 28,02,81,059 2f,21,01,938

Unwinding Interest on Lease Liabilities 7,274,269 8,73,310

Other Bank and Financial charges 15,22,200 10,03,000
Total Z,28,73,00,34% 2.27.11,36,023

Depreclation and amortisation

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Ilar 31, 2021 hiar 31, 2020
Depraciation un tangible assets 12,69,662 17,773,069
Pepreciation on Lease Assets 26,581,396 26,22,637
Depreciation on intangible assets 1,17,39,63,457 89,30,28,635
Yotal 1,17,79,14,195 £0,74,24,340
Otheir Expenses
Particulars For the year ended | For the year endad
Rdar 31, 2021 har 31, 2020
Rent - 2,726,089
Printing & Statipnery 7,29,466 11,54,422
Telecommunication Charges 11,06,594 12,05,733
Postage, Telegrams and Courier Charges 45,661 120,217
Advertisamont & Publicity 92,519 1,00,170
Bank charges and bank fees 6,05,036 6,32,655
Fees and taxes 3,05,696 3, 79,670
Loss ¢n Sale of Fixed Assot - 10,006,344
C5R Expense - 4,28 990
Fareign Exchange lass - 71,219
Auditars Remuneration 7,048,000 6,15,500
Office expenses 5,B5,509 7,45,060
Totat 41,85,483 b7,25,064
Provision for Major Maintenance of Roads
Particulars Far the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2621 Mar 31, 2020
Provision for Major Maintenancn - 1,98,64,130

1,98,64,130




34 Excaptional items

Particulars For the year ended | For the year encged
War 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Modificalion Gain/{Loss) on CRPS/NCD 3,98,21,89,219 -
Modification Galt/(boss) on Major Maintenance ,18,85,523 -
Yotal F L4 T W -

The Company had estimated Par-l facility payment of INR 620 crores & INR 208 crares in FY2021
& FY2022 {refer note 15 | respectively in anticipation of award of claim against NHAI through
Arkitration Tribunal proceedings. During the yeer, Arbitration Tribunal has not awarded any eash
claim {The compay an 15.07.2021 has chalfenged the award under Section 34 of Arbitration &
fronciliation Act, 1996 before the Hon'hle High Court of Delhi, refer note 45(d) 1.

in view of no cash claim, current habilities of Part-ll facility classilied as Mon Current, Liabilities as
per terms ol Master Debt Resclution Agreement (MORA) with Lenders executed on August 24,
2018 conhcluded on August 27, 2018. Consoquenthy, affect of galh on recalealation of carrying value
of liabilities on such reclassification of Part Il facility recognised as exceptional items.

During the year end, company has reviewed the provisions Lo adjust the curront best estimates and
accordingly revised its estimates of Provision for Major Maintenatee works. Gased on revised
estimates, Lhe company has roversed the provision of INR 7.1 Crorc and rocognised as exceptional
items. (refer note 45(hi)




SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN :U45206HRZ003PTCO32059

Notas to Financial Siatements for the perind ended 315t Barch 2021
25 Financlal Instruments
Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category
Amcint in Rupeos

. L i Mate 2032021 31.02.2020

Financiai instruments by categories no. FYTPL Py Amortized cost s nToc) armortized cast
Financial asset

Trade recelvable 7 - V,87,20,067 - - 22,48,81,112
Cash and cash equivalents g - 14,29,87,163 - - 17,34,85,754
Cther ank 1talance 2] - - B - - 57,21,71,853
Other Financial Assets 10 . 2,07,35,912 - - 2,53,01,423
Total Finendlal Asset - - 24,24,43,142 - - 99,58,41,142
Financial liability

Nor-current borrowings i5 - - 15,72,22,09,008 - 13,47,43,02,716
Lease Liability 16 - - 61,05,560 - - 86,05,423
Curtent larrowing 18 2,45,50,00,000 2,45,50,00,000
Trade Payabie 19 5,65,05,717 11,09,04,976
Other Current Finanelal Liabilities 20 - 1,88,44,5%, 255 - 7.75,63,72,953
Tatal Financial Liabilities - - 20,12,43,17,539 - - 23,80,51,86062

Default and hreaches

During the FY 20118-1% the Company had approached to lenders for restructuring of term loan as per RBI guidelines vide its circular dated February 12, 2018 bearing
reference no.RBI2017- 18/ 1310BR.No.BP.BC. 100/21.04.048/2017-18 and reference date was declared as March 1,2018 and cut-aff date as April 1, 2018,
Consequently ageregate loan amount of Rs.2391.98 Crore which includes mrincipal outstanding Rs.2261.14 Crore and interest pverdue of Rs.130.84 Crare as off out-
off date bifurcated into Part-1 Debt B5.1255.79 Crore and Part !l Faclily Rs.1136.19 Crore which Is further bifurcated into (i) R5.998.33 Crore of restructured facilities
corwerled inle cumulalive redeemable preference shares {ii) Rs.137.86 Crore of restructured facilities converted into non-conwvertible dehentures. Financing
dotumants of restructured facilities execated on August 24, 20018 concfuded on August 27, 2018.
‘The company is regularly servicing its debt obligation of restructured facilities, However restructured facllity still classified as Non Performing Assats (NPA) as on
reporting date in terms of above stated RBI circular. Az per Master Debt Resolutlon Agraement with Lenders, company needs to maintain Debt Service Reserve of
INR 50 Crs, during the financial year company has nal maintained the same.

There are no breaches during the year which permitted lender to demand accelerated payment.

36 Fair value of Financial asset and lialilities at amariized cost
. Note 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Particular — n
Tigh Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amoung Fair value

Financial Assats

Trade receivable 7 787,220,067 BT 20,067 22,48,81,112 23,48,81,112
Fixed Depasil 9 " - 7,21,70,924 721,705,924
Oiher Flnancial Assets 1 207,235,912 2,07,25,912 2,53,01,423 2,53,00,423
Tota! Financial Assets 9,04,55,979 9,94,55,975 32,23,53,459 32,23,5%,459
Financlal lizbility

MNon-current borrowings 15 15,72,22,08,008 15,72,22,09,008 13,47,43.02,716 12,47,43,02,716
lzase Liahility 16 61,05,560 £1,05,560 86.,05,423 BG,05,423
Current Borrowlng 13 2,45,50,00,000 2,45,50,00,000 2,45,50,00,000 2.45,50,00,000
Trade Payable 19 5,6%,05,717 5,65,05,717 11,09,04,976 11,09,04,976
Other Current Financial Liabilities 20 1,88,11,97,255 1,88,44,97,205 7,75,62,72,953 7,75,63,72,953
Total Financial Liabllities 20,12,43,17,539 | 20,12,43,17,539 23,80,51,85,069 |  23,80,51,86,069

The carrying amount of current financial assets and current trade and other payables measured at araortlsed cost are cansiderad to be the same as their fair values,

due ta their short torm netura,

The carrying value of Rupeo Term Loan and Loan from Related Farty spproximate fair value as the instruments are at provailing market rate,

Fair value are measured at level 3.
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Motes to Financal Statements for the pericd ended 3ist March 2021
Financial Risk Management

The company’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks : marlet risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The company's focus is o foresee the
unpredictahility of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Baard of Direclors has overafl
responsibility for the establishmend and oversight of the Campany's risk management framework, The Board of Directors has established 3 risk
management policy to Identify and analyzo the risks faced by the Company, to sot appropriate risk fimils and controls, and to moniter risks and
adhzrence 1o limits. Risk management systems are raviewed periodically ta refect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, The
Board of Directors oversco compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedurns, and reviews the risk management
Tramewoark.

Miarket risk

The market risk is the risk that the falr value or futuro cash floves ol a linancial instrument will fluctuate berause of changes in markef prices.
Market risl comprises three types ol risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Forgign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rale.

The company is nol exposed to Foreign Currency risk at raporting period date.

Interast rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that {air value or futura cash Nows af a financial instrument will fluctoage because af changas in market interest rates.
‘The Interest risk arises to the company mainly from Long term horrowings with variable rates. The company measures rlsk through sansitivity
analysis.

Currently, Lending by Commercial Banks is at variable rate only, which is the inherenl business risk.

The company's exposure to interest rate tisl due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows:

Particulars 31032001 31.03.2020 03.04. 2009

Senlor Debt from Banks - Variable rale Dorrowings 10,6447,30,480 11,43,68,53,367 11,01,42,23,554

Sensitivity analysis based on-average oulstanding Senior Deht

Impact on profitf loss aftor tax

Interest Rate Risl Analysis FY 2030-21 FY 201570

Increase or decrease in interest rate by 25 2,76.01,992 2,91,88,559
basis point
Mote: Profft will Incrense in case of decrense in fiderest rate and vice versa

i Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future rash Fows of a financial instrument will fluetiate because of changes in market prices (other than
thase arising frem interest rate risk or currency risk),
The company is nat exposed Lo price risk as it has noe investment.

Eiquidity risk

Liguidity risk js the risl that an entity will cncounter difficully In meeting obligations associated withi financial liabilities Lhat are sattled by delivering
cash or angther financial assets,

The: company is expased to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The company measures risk by forecasting cash flows.

The Company's approach to managing liquldily s 1o ensure, as far as possibly, thit it will always have sulficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due without incurring unarceplable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient fund to meet
expected operational expenses, servicing of linancial obligations.




The following are the contractual maturities of financial Rahilities

SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PVT. LTD.

Amount in Rupees

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Amount upto 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -Syears > 5 yeans

Man Derivative Firancial Uability

Tarm Loan from Banks and Financial

Institution incleding current maturity 10,64,47,20,480 22,38,21,070 1,13,02,10,550 L, 74,52,26,963 2,04,00,53, 898
(.04% Cumulative redeerable preference

shares of 10/~ each lully paid Tssued (o

lenders { Face Value R5.998.33 Crore refer

note 15) 3. 15,08,71,770 - - - 9,98,33,00,000
Man- Convertible Debentures of India

Infrastructure Finance Company Limited at

coupon rate 0.01% p.a.
[ Face Value Rs.127.86 Crore refer note 15)

71,60,27 822 - - - 1,37,8,00,000

Lease Liability 61,05,560.0 19,18,553 41,87,007 - -
Current RBormowings 2,4%450,00,000 +.415,50,00,000 B - -
Trade Payable L,65,05,717 5,65,05,717

Qther Current Financial Liahilities 1,05,56,76,185 1,05,56,76,185 - -

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Amount uplo 1 year 1 -2 years 2 - 5 years » 5 years

Mot Derivative Financial Liability

Term Loan from Barks and Financial 11,43,68,63,367 79,11,47,385 £2,88,21,07G 4,52,08,42,200 5,20,60052,712
Institution including current maturity

0.00% Curmulative redeemable preference 7.93,31,00,033 544,76,73,10 1,82 76,06,741. - 2.70,80,15,318
shares of 10/~ each Tully paid issued to

lenders { Face value Rs.998.33 Crore rofer

note 15)

Man- Convertible Debentures of india 1,00,54 865,641, 75,73,26,060 AL, 73,03,350 - 37,38,80,651
Infrastructure Finance Company Lirnited at

caupon rate DO1% pa.

[ Face Value Rs.137.86 Crore refer nale 15)

Lease Liability 86,045,423 24,50, 852 32,71,700 2882871 -
Current Barrowings 2,45,50,00,000 2,45,50,00,000 - - -
Trada Payable 11,0%,04,946 12,00,04,976

Other Currenl Financlal Liablllles 76,52,25,568 Fh,52,20,668 - - -

) Credjk rish

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by lalling to dischaige an obligation.

The company gunerally does not have trade receivables as collection of toll income ceincide as and when the traffic passas through tol! - plazas.as
an 31st March 2021, Trade receivable includes EVC 8 Card swipe which generally takes somedays to crodit in hank accounts and G840 Support
Grant receivable from NHAI which is an autonorous agency of Government of India. Hence, the management believes that Lhe company Is nal,

exposed ko any cradit risk,




SURAT HAZIRA NH-6 TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
[N UASHEHR2002P TCO35 053

Wotes to Financial Stakements for the period endod 315t March 2021

18 Caphtal Management
For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital Includes issued equity capital, interest frec loan from promoters, share
premiwm and all olher equity reserves attributable to the equity halders of the parenl. The primary ohjective of the company's caplial
management is to maximise sharcholder value. Tho Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
eronoimic tohditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may ad]ust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 4o shareholders or issue new shares, The Company moniters capital using a gearlng

ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital.

Partlculars

As at
harch 31, 2021

As at
Rar 31, 2020

Trehis

Woen curent Bosrowings ivcludimgr eureent ol uaties (Refir moee 15)
Cureent oproeyinpa{l efer noce 19

Intcvest accrucd (eler note 213

16,55,10,30,674
2,45,50,00,040)
80.50.61,962

20.40,54,503 11
245, 50,000
S2,66,50,045

Tess: Cash and Banlt Babanees 142087 1a3 19,66,58,607
Vatal (A) 19,66,81,04,877 22.70,14,41,538
Capital (B) (Reler note 13 & 14) £5 55,1 B8 (4T (37,7844, 757)
Mot Lebr /ol Cagital £4/15) (3.54) {60.08)

Mote :

B Prebts include Non Current bor rewing ocloding iis cuareent maturities), Corrent Borrowings and interest acorued thareon.

i} Capital includes Couity Share, ctivor equity.

392 Dlsclosura purstiani te tnd AS 115 - "Revenue from Contracts with Custemars”
Mo contract revenue recognised in the year, { Previous Year Ks.Rs. 4,06,15,185/-)

Method used to recoghise the cORSTHICTIGNS roventke - Work execied dusing the previous year,

AQ Disclosurs pursuant oo Ind AS 116 - "Loasoes”

Particulars Far the year ended Foi the year ended
areh 31, 2021 March 31, 20204
Right-of-use Assats !
As at April 12020 82,172,575 1,18,79,418
Less: Adjusted against cessation of fease [E3,559} [9,89,208)
Lass: Depreciation Expenses (26,81,356} 26,22,637)
Asat March 312021 54,52A490 8217575
Lease Labilittes :
A at April 12020 86,005,423 1,18,29.419
Adid: Accretion of Interest 727,869 8,713,110
Less: Repayman L Ad|ustiment against cessation of lease [32,27,732) (40,97, 306)
Mg at March 312021 61,035,560 B86,05,423
Tha following are the ameunts recognised in Profit & Loss Accaunt:
Depreciation Expenses of Right-of-usc assos 26,581,396 26,232,637
interpst Expenses on Lease Fabifitas 727,868 8,773,310
Total Amount recognised in Profit & Loss Accannt 24,090,265 34,85,947
The cormpanyhad Lotal cash outflow for operating leases of Rs, 31,44,042/- for the year
ended March 31, 2021

The Company has used the following practical expedients:

== Contracts where the remaining term was fess than 12 months on transitlon date, the Company did nat consider the same for conputing

it ROW asset and a corresponding lease lahility.

== (In initial application, IndAS 116 will ondy be appdied Lo cantracls thal were previously classified as leases.
4« The lease term has been determined with the use of hindsight whore the contract contains. opkions to extend the lease.
The naturc of cxpensas presently presented under rent and |ease rent under other expenses as par Ind AS 17 will now be presented as per

Ind A5 116 in the farm of:
seamortization charge for the ROL assal
=+ Finance cost from interest accrued on lease fiability

There will be consequent reclassification in the cash flows categories in the statomenl of cash lfows,
Certain office premises and others, which are taken on operating lease will now be capitalised uader Ind AS 116, However, the impact of

adoption of this new standard is not considered material.

The coinpany expects to exercise the extension aption for the aperating Ioases and canceflation clause shall not be involked. Hence the

disclosure requirement pertaining to undiscounted potential future rental payment on account of "Extension options expected nat 10 be

exercised” are not disclosed.
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41 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A5 12 - “Income taxes”
The Company does nat have taxable income and hence provision for currant tax has not been made. Fhe company is eli giblc Tor deduction
under section 801A of Income Tax Act and the tax holiday period of the company's preject falls within the concession pertod of the com pany
as defined in Section BOIA. Since tax on Temporary difference belween Accounting income and Taxable Income that arise turing the year will
bre reversed during such tax holiday peiiod 50 no deferred tax asset/ liabifity arises and accordingly no provision is made in the accounts.

42 Diseldsure pursvant to Ind AS 19 "Employes beneflts":
i} Defined contribution plan:
The Company's pravident fund and super anauation fund are the defined contrlbution plans.
Anamaunt ol Rs. 54,34,450/- {previous year: Rs.57,66,319/-) being contribution made ta recognlsed provident fund is recognised as
expanse and krcluted under Employes benefit expense (Note 29) in the Statement of Profit and loss.
{1i) Befined benafit plons:
Defined- Benefits Plans: The Company offers its emplovees defined-benefit plans in the form of a gratuity schieme {a lump sum amound) and
leave crcashment. Benellls under the defined benefit plans arg typlcally based on years of service and the employes’s compensation
(immediately before ratirement}, The gratuily scheme covers substaniially afl regular employees. Commitments are actuarlally determined at
year-end. The actuarial valuation is done based on *Projected Unit Credit” mothod. Sains and losses of changed actvarial assumplions are
charged to Statement of Profit and loss,

Amount in Rupees

G@ratulty Leava Encashment
Farticulars A5 ot hs at A5 at| As at
Mar 31, 2121 Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2021 Tlar 31, 2020
Change in the presant value of the dafined
benefiy ohligation 15 as follows:
Dpening defined honofit ohilgation 1,22,21,877 1,2941,440 82,71,874 95,62, 770
Interest cust 855,531 905,524 579,031 6,060,394
Current services cost 25,49 798 26,75,116 22,51,836 18 76,237
Benelits pald [10,45,650) [21,44,241) (9,356,717} [25,73,200)
Actuarial {gains)flosses on obligation 10,565,847 [21,55,792) 14,04 297 {12,58,317)
Closing defined benefit oblization 160,147,418 1.23,21,877 1,15,70,821 82,71,524
EXPENSE TO BE RECOGMISED IN P & L ACCOUNT 31™ Miarch Z021) 315t iarch 2020 21" March 2021 315t March 2020
Current Service Cost 29,459,793 26,75,110 232,51, 836 i3, 76,22
Interest Cost o henelit obligation 8,505,531 9,05,5924 5,795,031 £,69,384
Expected return on plan assets - - . -
Net Actuarial {gain) / Loss recognized in the year 10,65,892 {21,58,792} 14,004,897 [12,58,317)
Past services cost - - - -
Met Benefll expense 4371221 14,24 248 42,35,764 12,887,309
Summary of acturarial assumptlions Summary of Surmmary of Summary of Summary of actuarial
actuarial actuarizl actuarial assumptlons
assumptians __assumiptions Assumptions
317 March 2021 | 31" March 2020 | 31° Mareh 2021 31" March 2020 |
A. Principle rules to compute Benefit Oblipations
t.5alary reckaned for calowiating Banefit As per rolns. of the |As per ruies ofthe  |As perrules of the  |As perrufes of the
Dbllgations Company Comnpany LCompany Company
. . As par rule of the As perryle of the
FAY Syears for G I
‘esting Perlod S years for Gratuity |5 years for Gratulty Company Company
Alxl Ieled 1 * sal #1126 * Ral *
Ea:: o?:.:!?vim x A1 x Completed vear Nﬁ:her e f f as:aagrtl‘ IDN:;nber
3.Benefit formula for Grataity lor all exits except v . of servive 1528 atforenc CauES.
15/26 subject to ; encashable leavos,
death - subiject to benefit
benefit having \
having vested
wesghud
A subject j
1.Banefit formula for Gratuity/Leave Encashrient [Same a5 A 3 but no [Same as A 3 but ne same as A subject [Same as A3 subject to
. . ) - to rules af the rulas of the Company
on death vesting rondition  |vesting condition
Company
B.Maan Financial Assumptions
[nterest Rate for discornt per unit per annum 7,003 F O 7.00% 7.00%
Salary escalation rate pev unlt per ancoum 2% 84 2% 2%
Expecied rate of return on plan Asscts por anit per NA i WA NA
ANNLNY
C.Mean Damograghlc Assumptisns .
_ 1ALR 20214 lAlha 2002-14 1ALRA 2012-24 1ALM 201 2-14
Mortality Rate \ - . .
[Ultimate) {Uitimate] {Ultimate} {Uitimate)
Atrition rate 5% Er 5% 54
Disability f il health No Exp“{,“t to eIpHFIt No Exp“c,lt Mo explicit assumption |,
. ASSL MPtion assumption assurnption .
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(i} Sensivity Analysis:

Sigrificant actuariat assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation sre discount rale and expected salary intrease rate.
Gffect of change in mortatity rate 1s negliglble. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented belaw may nat be representative of the
actual change in the defined benedlt obfigation as it is unlikely that the change o assumption would eccur in isclation of one another a3 some
of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:

Salary Increase
Rate : #%, and
distaunt rake ;7%

Increase Rate © 8%,
and discount rate
7%

Gratuity Leave Encashmant
. As at As at As at Esat
Particulars
Mar 31, 2021 Rar 31, 2020 War 31, 2021 Miar 31, 2020
Defingd Benefit Dbligatlon (Basn) 1,60,47,448 @ 1,22,21,877F @ Salary|1,t5,70,921 B2, 71,874

Liability with 1% increase in Discount Rate 1,41,35,425; 1,06,58,033; 1,02,23,301; 72,55,983; (Change
[Change 112)% ] [Change {1219 ] [Chanae (1215 ] {1235 ]

Vighility with 1% decrease In Discount Rate 1,83,73,098; 1,40,90,266; 1,32,03,590; 9812 269; [Change
[Change 14%] [Change 153 ] iChange 14% ] 154 ]

Liahility with 1% increase in Salary Growth Rate  |1,83,25,988; 1,40,52,425; 1,21,70,590; 04,87,188; [Chanpe
[Change 14% ] Whange 15% 1 [Change 14% ] 15% ]

Liahility with 1% decrease in Salary Growth Rate  [1,41,35,425; 1,06,98,033; 1,02,23,301; 72,55,98%; [Change
[Change {12]%] [Chanes (1210 | {thange [12}% ] 1121% ]

Liahility with 1% increase in Withdrawal Rate 1,5821,623; 1,19,39,941} 1,14,46,853; B1,73,950; {Change
[Change (11%] {Change {21% ] [Change (11%] (1151

Liability with 1% decrease in \Wikhdrawal Rate

1,63,06,163
IChange 2%1]

1,24,73,271%;
[Change 2%}

1,17,15,879;
[Change 1% ]

83,86,566; [Change 1%
1

43 Related Party Transactions
Holding Companies

Companies Having Significant influence

Subsidbary Company

Related partics with Comnton Director

Directors

Key Management Persennel (KKP}

Trensactions with Related Parties:

1. Inclus Concessions India Put, LLd. -Hol ding. Comgpany

[Formetly known as solux Corsan Concessions India Pyt Ltd.)

7. Roadls Concesiones S.L.U - [ Formerly known as [solug Corsan
Concesiones S.A - Madrid) Subsidlary of Ultimate Holding Campany

M/'s Roadis Transportation Holding 5.1.U

1. 50rma Enterprise LEcl,

2. Soma Tollways Pvt

Wil

[P

R

-

Jai Keswani

Lict

Panipat [alandhar MH-1 Tellway Pt Lid,
. Kishangarh Beawar NH-8 Tolway Pyl Lid.
. Soma Indus Vararsst Aurangabad Tollway Pyt Ltd,

mr. Bamachandra Rag Patd

Mr. Pentrala Subbarao

M. lose Rarmon Ballesteros Martingz
5. Maria Esther Ayuso Gil

Director
Director
Divector
Diractor

Company Secretary
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Amount In fupeeas

5. Mo Hature of transacticn Amaount of Antount e Amodt Due
Transatiion To Fram
1 |Somg Enterpriss Lo,
i)  |Expenses made on their behalf 1704821 [LH] 17,07,821
193,66,612) il wil
{iit  [Retention Money- EPC Hil 17,17.54,826 Mil
il {17,17,54,826) [l
fiii)  [Remmbursement of Utility & Change of Scopo ol 13257578 Nl
Expenses
(MY [1,32,57,578) (Ml
2 |Panipat lalandbar MH-1 Tallway Pyl Ltd.
{i) |Expenses made on their behalf-SAP AMC 97,565 Al il
19,582,942 {Nil) 18,599,602
{it] |Purchase of Electric Fittings 53,006 53,006 Mi
1T H]] {r4il) Wiy
3 Kishangarh Beawar NH-B Tollway Pet. Lid.
{il  [Expenses made on thalr behalf-SAP AML it il nil
[5.20,382) (it} 14,76,282)
4 |Somg Indus Veranast Aurangabad Tollway Put.
1 [Expenses made on thelr behall-SAP AR 97,565 il il
(20,598,582} {nil} {10,05,452)
5  [lndus Concessions India Pui. Lid.
{1 Expensos made on their hebalf-S AR ARC 20 8E0 BO,880 il
[1,15,640) N} (11,0580}
5 |Remuneration to Koy Monagoriat Personnel {Rr.
Ja7 Keswani)
i) |a) salaries, wages, bonus, cornmisslen, PF and 33,89,153 Nl il
other benefits
[ii} |Gratuity/Encashment and other retirerment 90,05 16,605,307 Mil
henefits
Tertal 34,792,542 16.6%, 307 il
(37,01,041) {15,75,217) (il
Note :
{1} Figures in { } represents previous year.

{2} The company has disclsoad related partles will whom bransacllons was made ducing the oorrend fingncal year and or previous financial year.
{3} Onthe terms & candillons of The Master Debt Resolution Agrecment, Secured Ghligation shall inter-alta be secured by Corporate
Guarantees of the Guarantors i.e Indus Cencessians India Pvt. Ltd. and %orma Caterprises Lid. in favour of Trustee i.e IDBI Trusteeship
Serviees Limitad,
The Guarantor invevocably and unconditionaily:
- puarantee to each of the Finance Parties punctual performance by the Corrower of ali its obligations under the Resolution Plag  Fnance
Dorurnents including without fimitation the repayment/redemption of the Secured Obligation.
- guarantee and undertakes to all the Finance parties that, whenever the Borrower does riot pay any amount when due under ar in
conneclion with any Resolution Plan Finance Document, the Guarantor shall forthwith but in any event within 10 {Ten) Business days of issue
of the Bemand Certlficate by the Trusles, pay that amound as il il were e princlpat obligor in respect of that amount payable as per the
terms of the Resolution Plan Finance Dacuments.
In case of Borrower does not commit any such defanll in complying wilh the terms & Conditlon of the Master Debt Resolution Fian and the
other Resolution Plan, the said Corporate Guagamtee shall be relcased and the guarantors shall be absalved of their obligations towards the
Lenders, the CRPS holder and the MCD Holders, upon achievement of the Final settlemeant Date,
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A4 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 33 "Earnings per share" _
Baste and Ciluted Farnings per sharc [ERS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 "Farnings per share”,
Amount Tn itupees

Particulars 2020-21 201920

Rasic earnings per equity share:
Prafil lor the year attributablc to owners of the Company for

A i . . M 15.17,31,77,386) {1,35,81,80,937)
calculating basic carnings per sharg
Weiphted ave r%:ge ny _mber of equity shares oulstanding for 5 8.65,73,000 88,57.30,000
calculating basic carnings per share
Basic earnings per aquity share () AfB {58.41} [1.58)
Dilyted earnings par equity share () ASB {58.41} [1.58)

45 Disclosures as per Ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Cantingent Liabilities and Contingens assets "

a} Nature of grovision:
The campany is required to operate and malntain the project highway during the entire concession perind and hand over the praject back to
the Authorlly {(MHAI 83 per the maintenance standands prescribed in Concession agreement.

Far this purpnse, @ regular maintenance along with periodic maintenances is reguired to he performed. hormally periodic maintenance
tncludes resurface of pavements, repairs of structlines and ather eguipments aed maintenanco of sorvice roads.

As per industry practice, the periodic maintenance is expected to vcour after 5-7 years, The maintenance cost /  bituminous gverlay may
vary based on the actual usage during maintenance petiod. Accordlagly on the grounds of matching cost concept and based an technicat
estimates, a provision for major maintenance expenses is reviewod and s providerd for in the accounts annually,

b} Mowemeni in provisions: Amount in Rupees
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 Maarch 2020

Opening batance: 95,56,19,500 B7,04,17,771
Additional provision - 1,9E,64,130

Less : Reversal of provision mads W earlicr yoar {7,18,85,513) -
Urnwindding of discount and changes in discount rate B8,71,.05.752 ¥ 83 37,509
Closing balance 98,29,09,729 86,806,19,500

During the year, Company has raviewsed the provisions 1o adjust the current best estimates and scoordingly revised its estimates of Provislon
for Major Maintenance Works.

Asat Asat
([=]]
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2620
Projected year of actual expenditure of Major Maintanance
Financial Year 2030-23 - 40,62,00,000
Flnancial Year 2021-22 ) - 40),62,00,000
Financial Yoar 2022-23 204,62,00,000 A0,62,00,000
Financlal Year 2023-24 42,44, 79,000 -
Financial Year 2024-25 ,35,80,505
Total 1,27,42,5%,555 1,21,86,00,400

Major maintenance pravision made durlng the year is Nil {previous year Bs. 1,98,64,1314-)

c} Capital Commitment
Capital Cammitment {Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed net of advanees) : Ks.74,57,66,530/-
{ PY :- Rs. 74,57 66,530/~ )
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d} Claim Against company not acknowledge 25 Debt

The Company has filed a claim of INR 3557.42 crores to MHA) by Dec 2018 before Arbitration tribunal, against which NHAI has also filed
counker claim of INE 119518 crares . The Arkitration sward in the matter weas pubished on 10.03,2021. Award entitles the compamy 958
days of extension of Concession Period heyond the stipulated end of tolling period of 19 vears on 31.03.2028, The company an 15.07.2021
has challenged the award wndor Section 34 of Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 before 1he Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. The matter is listed

fur hearing en Qctoher 5, 2021

The management finds no merit of NHAI counter claim of INR 1199,18 crores and as per the assessment of Management, no clims is to be
payahle to NHAI and possibility of outflow of resources against the counter claim of NHA| are remote,

Financial Activities {ind AS — 7} for the year 2020-21

45 Reconciliation hetween the Opening and Closing balances inthe finandal statement far LiabiNties and financial Assets arising from

Amaount In Rupees

[Particulars Borrowings Leasa Liability Interest Total
Dpening Balance 22,92,04,50,101 26,05,423 52,66,50,043 3,45 57 05,567
Lr::rrest & Financial Expenses fccried during the : 7,27,369 2.18,63,96,724 3,20,01,24 593
Cash flows
Repayment during the year [79,21,32, 887} [31,44,042) - [¥9,52,75,529]
Interest & Financial Expenscs paid - - {1,06,30,79,383) {1,06,30,78,383}
Non Cash adjustiments
Interest Accrued on CPRS,NCD B5,79,05,422 - (85,70,05,422) -
Reclassification Interast Accrued on CPRS 14,96,660 19,96,660
Derecognition of Lease Liabllity - (83,650} - {83,600)
DEre_cognPum_-p of liakility due to subsiantial (3,98,21,89,219) (3,9%,21,84,219)
madification interms sheet
Closing Balance 19,00,60,30,078 61,05,560 80,5061 562 19,81,71,57,600

Reconcillation betwenn the Opening and Closing baiances in the financial staizment for Liabilities and Financial Assets arising from

Financial Activities {ind AS — 7} for the year 2019-20

Arnount in Rupees
Particulars Rorrowings Lease Liability Interest Total
Dpening Ralance 22,61,15,08,283 - 23.45,63,905 73,84,91,72,188
Laase liabifity recognised durlng the year - 1,12,29.419 1,18,28419
inerest & Financial Expenses Agcrued during the _ 8,73,310 2,19,19,25,114 2.19.37,98,424
year
Cash flows
Repayment during the year 147,73,60,227) (30, 72,240} - [458,04,32,467)
Interest & Elnanclal Expenses paid - - {1,11,66,36,931) {1,11,66,35,331)
Mon Cash adjustinents
Interest Accrued on CPRS & NCD 78,33,02,045 - {78,23,02,045) -
Drereepgnition of Lease Liability - {10,25,063) - (10 25,003)
Closing Balance 22,52,08,50,101 8E,05,42G 52,66 500,043 23,45,57,05,570

47 Corporate Sociat Rasponsibility Expenditure

As per the provision of section 135 of the companies Act, 2013, Company has to spend atleast 2% of average net profit of the preceeding
three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR"), In the last three preceeding financial years company {5 in loss, s0
company no needs to contribute towards CSR expendilure & form C5R vommitte for carnying out CER activities. The area of TSR activities are
eradicating hungor, poverty, malnutrition, premoting preventing health care | providing relief tothe peor rurad developrent project.

No Centribution/Expenditure was made by the company during the Fy 2020-21.

Deiails of CSR Expendiiure

Amouni in Rupees

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

Agzat
31 March 2020

Constructionfacquisition af an assets

2} Gross Amount reequired to be spent by the company during the year
b} Amount Spent during the year ended March 31, 2021

Contribytion to other purpose other than i_‘flé.t\"f

4,28,830

Tota!

4,728,984
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48 Pisclasure pursiant to Impact of Covtd 19
The duration and impact of the COVB-19 pandemic. remaing unclear at present as on bool closure date, Hence, it is not passible to reliably
estinate the duratign and severlly of these conseguences, as well as their impact on the financiaf positlon and results of the Company for
future periods. However, the comipany s protected by the clauses of the Concession Agreesr ent Lo claim such loss undor force majeure
event, gither in the form of foree majewre cost or revenue loss compensation by way of extension of he toncession periad or by both, The
management of the Company will study the inpact & the appropriate clalm will be lodged after this lock down period.
In oeder to give Covid -19 relief to concessionaire, Minlstry of Hoad Transport & Highway vide its circular/letter no Covid-
19/RoadMap/15iH] /2020 dated June 3, 2020 & MHAI Policy no 18.46/2020 dated June 22, 2020 has extended consession period Lo 36 days
anct coinpany has incorporated related financial impact during the financial vear.

49 fdateriz | uncertainty related to Going Concern

The Company operates In the infrastrocture business seckor which involves huge capital Ivestrents. The company's net worth has besn
croded. The Company has negalive balance of Retained Earning of IMR 930,02,88,063/- and negative net worth of INR 555,20,88,063/- and
current liabilities exceeds current assel by 366,08,11,289/- as on March 31,2021, These conditions indicate the exisience of an uncartalnty
35 to timing and realization of cash flow of the company. However management expecis that the Company's revenue for the subsequent
financial years will be sufficient to meet the expenditure and recoup the losses incurred thereby strengthening the financial pasition of the
Company, Further, there is a continuing support frorn the halding company and company will be able to discharge all its obligations in
foreseeable futwre. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis,

50 Pavments to Auditor [Excluding GET) Amaunt In Rupess

Asat As &t
Particulary Mar 31, 2091 Mar 31, 2020
Rupees Rupaes
{a] Statutory Audic Fee 5,00,000 5.00,000
{h) Crther Services {Opinlon/Limited Review f Certification Fees) 75,000 75,000
(€} Reimbursement of Expenses 25,000 25,000
Total 6,000,000 &,00.000

&1 There have been no repertable transactions during the year with Micrs, Small and Mediom Enterprises covered under
the Micreg, Smali and Medium Enterprises Develapment (RASMED) Act 2006..

52 Fareign Currency Transackigns

(i} Expenditure in Forcign Currency Hil [Previous Year Rs, 90765159)
(i} CIF wizlue of Irnport Mil (Previous Year Nil)
[} FOB value of Export il {Previous Year Mif)
[} Earntngs in Foreign Exchange Nil {Previous Year Mif}
[v} Remittance in Foreign Exchange Nil [Fresious Year Mil}

53 Dizclosure pursuant o Ind AS 36 "Impainmenk of Assets”
Actual concession period end date is March 29, 2073, However as per clause 28,1 of CA, Target Traffic as on Qetober 1, 2018 s estimated to
be 37,920 PCUs per day (average of both toll plazas). In case the actual trafiic reported is less than 32,920 PCU then for every 1% shtorllzl as
compared to the Target Traffic, the Concesslon Perind shall be increased by 1.5% provided that such increase in Convession Period shall nat
in any case ewceed A0% of tho Concession Period.
Artual traffic on Ociober 1, 2018 { Targot Date) was 23,485 FCU which is about 35% tesser than Target trafflc; hence the company envisage
possibility of 208 increase In concession period e, Gl Januany £4, 2033, Addittonal 36 days extension has been assumcd gn account of
COVID-15 as per NHAI guidelines,
Based on a review of the fulure discounted cash flows of the project faciliny after incorporating effect of extensian of concession poriod &
Cevid-19 on future revenue, the recoverable amount of IMR 2513.04 crores is less than the carrying amount of INR 2218.22 Crores and hence
provision far impairment of Right under Service Concession Arrangement of IMR 705,28 Crores Is made for the year.

5

=y

Disclosure of segment information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”

The Company is engaged in the business of canstruction, operation and maintenance of Toll road projects on a Build Operata Transfer basls
in & single business segment. Herce reporting of operating segmonts does nol arise. The Campany does not have aperations qutside India.
Hencae, disefosure of geographical segment information does not arise,
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55 Disclosura pursuant to ind AS 115 - " Revenue frem Contracts with Custormers”

{a) Description and classification of the arrangement
Surat Hazira MH-6 Tollway Tvt, Ltd. (Formerly knowm as Soima Isolux Surat Hazira Tollway Pyt Ltd Jis a Special Purpose Vehicle {SPv)
incorporated for the four-laning of Gujarat f Maharashtra Border —Surat Hazira post section of NHOP Phase-l1 throgh Fubllic/ Private sector
Partnership (PP} on Mattonal Highway - 6 with approsimate length of 131,50 Kllometers in the State of Gularat, under concession
agraement dated L34 kay 2009 with the MNational [Tighways Autherity of India. The Cencession agreement is for 2 period of 19 years
commancing fram the agpainted dare of 20th March 202070 clause 3.1.1 of the said agreement. The Company bas achieved Provisional
Completion Operational date on 19th August, 2015 and started tolf coliection operation w.e.l 2151 August, 2015, The Company has achieved
Provisipnal Completion Operational-2 date o Sth Oclober, 2016 and Provisional Completion Operational-3 on 29th March, 2018.
The concession period is 1% years which shall end on 28th March, 2029
However as per clause 29,1 of Ca, Target Traffic ag on October 1, 2018 s nstimated to be 37,920 PCUs per day (average of both tolt plazas).
In case the actual traffic reported is |ess than 37,920 PCU then far every 1% shortfall a5 compared to the Target Traffic, the Concesslon
Period shall be increased by 1.5% provided that such intrease in Concession Period shall nat in any case excesd 20% of the Concession
Period.
Actual traffic on Qctaber 1, 2018 | Target Date }was 23,895 PCU which is about 35% lesser than Target Uraflic; hence the company enwispge
passibility of 204 increase in concession period Le., Gl January 14, 2033,
In order to give Covid -19 rellef to concesslanalre, Ministry of Road Transpart & Highway vide its circularfletter no Covid-
19 Roadiiap/IS(HN 2020 dated hune 3, 2020 & NHA| Palicy no 18.46/2020 dated lune 22, 2020 has issued guidance on extension of
roncession peiod. Additional 36 days extension has been assurned on account of COYID-19 as per NHAI guidelines.

(b} significant Terms of the arranperents
1) Revision of Fees:
Feus shall be revised aanually on Aprit T subjoct 1o the provisions Schedule G of the Concession Apreement ([CA) dated 18th May, 2000,

1] Contession Fee:
e par Article?6 of the CA, the company is required to Rs.1 and concession fee par annurn.
iif] Rights of the Company far use Project Highway
a To demand, collect and appropriate, Fee from vebicles and parsans liable for payment of Fee for using the Project Highway or any part
thereof and refuse entey of any vehicle if the Foe duc is not pafd.
b Right of Way, access and license to the site
i} Obligation of the Company
a The company shall not assign, transfer or sublet or create any lien or Encurnbrance on the CA or the Concession granted or on the whaole or
any part of the Project Highway nor transfer, lease or part possession thereof, save and except as expressly permitted by CA or the
Substituiion Agreemenl.
b The comparty is under obligation to carry out the routing and perodic maintenance of Project Highway as per Clause 17,3 of Section | of the
Ca
v} Details of any assets 1o be given or taken at the end of concession period
at the end of the Concession period the tompany shall deliver e acteal or constructlve possession of the Project Highweay, free and clear of
all encurnbirances.
vi} Details of Termination
CA can be terminated on account of default of the company or MHAL N the dreumstances as specified under Chapler ¥ of the CA,

56 Ity the opinton of the Board, the cotrent aasets, 10ans & advanoes, hawve & value onorcallzation in the ardinary course of business at least equal
to the amaunt at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

57 There were no litigation pénding againgt the company which cowld be materially impact its financizl positicn as at the end of the year,

S8 Previcus year figures have beon re-grouped, resworked and re-classified wherever necessary, to make ther comparable with current year
figures
For and on behalf of Board of Directors e As per our report of even date
For Gupta Mayar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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